

Clean Water Procurement Program 
Request for Proposals 
Question and Answer 3/2/2026

1. Question: Does the "maximum of five (5) years of reduction production (Production Period)" apply to all proposed projects, including those with a 1-year construction period?

18. Term of Contract. The term of the contract will commence on the Effective Date and will end no later than ten (10) years after the Effective Date. The Issuing Office will fix the Effective Date after the contract has been fully executed by the selected Offeror and by the Commonwealth and all approvals required by Commonwealth contracting procedures have been obtained. Each contract will include any construction period and a maximum of five (5) years of reduction production (Production Period) during which the Offeror may deliver verified reductions provided that the total of the construction period and the five (5) year production period does not exceed the ten (10) year limit above. The selected Offeror shall not start the performance of any work prior to PENNVEST’s issuance of a Notice to Proceed after the Effective Date of the contract.
 	
Answer: Yes, this applies to all applicants.  The maximum period of time over which PENNVEST will accept the delivery of verified nitrogen reductions under the current Clean Water Procurement Program Request for Proposals (“CWPP RFP”) is a five-year period.  Note, applicants should determine the proposed number of verified nitrogen reductions they wish to sell to PENNVEST in each year over the next five (5) years, as well as the proposed price per pound for verified nitrogen reductions.  In the example below, an applicant could spread the cost of the project over the full five (5) years, or recover the full cost of the project upfront in year one.  The applicant must determine the competitive pricing strategy that best suits their needs in response to the CWPP RFP.  

Example:  A project is anticipated to cost $50,000 and generate 5,000 lbs of nitrogen reductions over 5 years.  The applicant could spread the cost of the project over the full 5 years, lowering the cost per pound of nitrogen reduction and making the proposal more competitive in the funding round, or the applicant could charge for the full cost of the project in Year 1, rendering a higher, less competitive bid.  
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Applicant A

	Year
	Nitrogen reductions

	1
	1,000 lbs

	2
	1,000 lbs

	3
	1,000 lbs

	4
	1,000 lbs

	5
	1,000 lbs


Cost per pound: $10.00
Total contract cost: $50,000
Applicant B

	Year
	Nitrogen reductions

	1
	1,000 lbs

	2
	0 lbs

	3
	0 lbs

	4
	0 lbs

	5
	0 lbs


Cost per pound: $50.00
Total contract cost: $50,000
Payment to selected bidders is made only upon delivery of verified nitrogen reductions. It should also be noted that cost per pound only accounts for 40% of the total available points for scoring.  
See the CWPP RFP Program Description for more information on scoring. 

2. Question:   Can you provide clarity for us regarding the unit of lb/year and whether we should be putting in bids for the total amount on the CBNTT report, or multiplying it by the number of years the practice life is for? For example, if we include an annual practice like cover crops in our application, do we multiply the CBNTT lb/year by the number of years we implement the practice?
Answer:  The Suggested Project Schedule (Page 9 of the CWPP RFP Application) should include only the proposed verified nitrogen reduction amounts you are proposing to sell to PENNVEST, as well as the proposed delivery dates.  The Cost per Pound (Page 11 of the CWPP RFP Application) should include the total maximum pounds of verified nitrogen reductions you wish to sell to PENNVEST over the life of the contract and the requested price per pound of verified nitrogen reductions. 
See the answer to Question 1 above for additional information.

3. Question:  I am reaching out to find out more about the bidding process. It seems as though there were some areas vendors may be filling in docusign?

Answer:  Here is the link to the information regarding the Clean Water Procurement Program: https://www.pa.gov/agencies/pennvest/programs-and-services/requests-for-proposal/clean-water-procurement-program  

There are instructions regarding the bidding process on the webpage; PENNVEST uses Docusign for this process.  

4. Question: The website indicates that proposals are due on April 22, 2026; however, the project description document says that proposals are due on March 4, 2026. Please verify that the official deadline for submittal is April 22, 2026 and the deadline for submitting verifications plans is March 22, 2026. 

Answer: The Project Description document has been updated.  The correct application submittal deadline is 5:00 pm on April 22, 2026.  Requests for Verification Plan approval by the Department of Environmental Protection should be submitted by March 22, 2026. 



5. Question:  It is unclear how the 5 year “Production Period” relates to the amount of nitrogen reduction can be claimed or how this relates to invoicing for the reductions. 

Answer: See the answers to Questions 1 and 2 above.

6. Question: Please confirm that wetland restoration BMPs are still applicable for the 20-year lifespan identified in the Chesapeake Bay Program’s  “Quick Reference Guide for Best Management Practices”. 
 
Answer: Please contact either Theia Hofstetter or Victor Landis at the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection as they can help best determine the lifespan of your Wetland Restoration BMP. 

Their contact Information is as follows:

Theia Hofstetter | Water Program Specialist
Department of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Clean Water | Wastewater Operations
Rachel Carson State Office Building
400 Market Street | Hbg PA 17101
Phone: 717.772.5949
Email thehofstet@pa.gov

Victor Landis | Data Management Division Manager
Department of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Clean Water
Rachel Carson State Office Building
400 Market Street | Hbg PA 17101
Phone: 717-772-5646
Email lvandis@pa.gov 

7. Question:  Please confirm that all reductions to be claimed from wetland restoration, or riparian buffer BMPs may be invoiced at the time of completion and that the expectation is not that these practices will be invoiced on an annual basis over 5-years. 

Answer: Payment for nitrogen reductions occurs upon delivery of verified nitrogen reductions to PENNVEST. 
See the answers to Questions 1 and 2 above for additional information.


      
8. Question: The CWPP Program Description dated November 25, 2025, does not have updated standard terms and conditions attached to it. Are there updated standard terms and conditions or are the terms and conditions from the original document in 2023 still applicable.

Answer: The Standard  Terms and Conditions have been uploaded to the PENNVEST Clean Water Procurement Program website.

9. What year was CBNTT tool last updated? We are inquiring if the tool has been updated to allow for the input of BANCS data and other stream protocols to accurate account for stream restoration practice A-9? 

If the tool has not been updated to allow for the input of BANCS and other stream restoration protocols data needed to account for reductions under A-9, are we permitted to submit the calculation using CAST in lieu of the CBNTT tool, to show nutrient reductions.  We found the following note related to stream restoration practice A-9 referencing that data needed is the same as practice N-1. The application of floodplain wetlands as an agricultural stormwater BMP is not pursuant with the CBP expert panel guidance documents. 

BMP A-9. Stream Restoration (Ag) reference sheet is targeted for the agricultural sector. See Sheets N-1: Stream Restoration (Urban and Non-Urban) and D-5: Urban Stream Restoration if interested in developed or general sectors, though the information is the same. (page 55 of the attached guidance).
Answer: In accordance with Paragraph 12 of the CWPP RFP, to be considered for selection, offerors much submit their Chesapeake Bay Nutrient Trading Tool (CBNTT) data to the PA DEP Bureau of Clean Water.  Please contact either Theia Hofstetter or Victor Landis at the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection for information regarding the CBNTT tool.  
Their contact Information is as follows:

Theia Hofstetter | Water Program Specialist
Department of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Clean Water | Wastewater Operations
Rachel Carson State Office Building
400 Market Street | Hbg PA 17101
Phone: 717.772.5949
Email thehofstet@pa.gov

Victor Landis | Data Management Division Manager
Department of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Clean Water
Rachel Carson State Office Building
400 Market Street | Hbg PA 17101
Phone: 717-772-5646
Email lvandis@pa.gov 

 

